
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 8 

Ref: SENF-UFO 

CERTI FIED MAI L 
RETURN RECEIPT REOUESTED 

Roberti Gallegos, Owner 
Micro Motors 
9619 Highway 65 
Cory, CO 81414 

Dear Mr. Gallegos: 

1595 Wynkoop Street 
DENVER, CO 80202-1129 

Phone 800-227-8917 
http://www.epa.govlregion08 

fEB 29 2012 

Re: Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, 
And Notice Of Opportun ity For Hearing 
Docket No. SDWA-08-2012-0017 

Enclosed is a Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, And Notice or Opportunity For Ilearing 
(complaint) issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as authori zed by the Safe Drinking 
Water Act (SDWA), 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2. The document describes how you, as the owner of Micro 
Motors have vio lated the SOW A and proposes both compl iance requirements and the assessment of a 
civil penalty. 

However, if you fully comply with the compliance order requirements in :1 timely manner as set 
out in the COIJII)"lint, KPA will eVlllulite the civil flcn:llty factors ut 42 V.S.C. § 300h-2(c)(4)(8), ~lIld 
may settle this case without the assessment of a civil penalty, if approprillte. Please note that there 
arc deadlines in the complaint that must be fo llowed. The complain t is effect ive upon the receipt date, 
and you have thi rt y (30) ca lendar days to file an answer to dispute the contents orthc complaint. 

I r you have any technical questions, contact Orilla Copt ,It the above address (with the mail code 8ENf ­
UFO) or by phone at (303) 312-6229. For legal questions, the atto rney assigned to this matter is Jean 
Belille, who can be reached at the above address (with the mail code SENf--L) or by phone at (303) 31 2-
6556. 

We urge your prompt attention to thi s matter. 

~rcly, 

ndrew M. Gaydosh 
Assistant Regional Administrator 
Office of En!orccment, Compliance 

and Environmental Just ice 



Enclosures: 

Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty Complaint, 
and Notice of Opportunity for !-Icaring 

Part 22 Rules of Practice 
Public Notice 
U.S . EPA Small Business Resources Fact Sheet 
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UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMI':NTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

RF:GION 8 
Docket No. SDWA- 08-2012-0017 

In the Matter of: ) 
) 

2012 FEB 29 AM 10: IS 

Roberti Gallegos, AKA ) 
Roberti Nangallcgos, Owner ) 
Micro Motors ) 

PROPOSIW COM PLIANCE ORDlm, 
PENALTY COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF 
OI'PORTUNITY FOR IIEARING 

) 
) 
) 
) 

Respondent. ) 

INTRODUCTION 

!. This Proposed Compliance Order. Penalty Complaint and Noticc of Opportunity for 
Ilcaring (complaint) is authorized by Congress in section 1423 0 r the Public I Jcalth Service Act. 
commonly known as the Safe Drinking Water Act (the I\ct). 42 U.S.c. § 300h-2. The 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations authorized by the statute arc scI out in part 
144 of title 40 of th<.: Code of Federal Regulations (c. F .R.), and violations or the slatuh.:, permils 
or EPA regulations constitute vio lations orlhc Act. The rules ror this proceeding arc the 
"Consolidated Rules or Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment or Civil Penalties. 
Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders and the Revocation, Termination or 
Suspension or Permits (" Rules or Practice")," 40 C F.R. Part 22. a copy or which is cllclosed. 

2. Tllc undersigned EPA official has been prop(:rly delegated the authority to iSSlH.! this 
complaint. 

3. EPA allcgcs that Roberti Gallegos (AKA Roberti Nangallegos) owner or Micro 
Motors (Respondcllt), has violated the regulations and tlll:relorc thc Act. as more J"ully explained 
below. 

NOTIClc OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARI NG 

. .J., Respondcnt has the right to a public hearing before a presiding nf"jiccr within the 
Ag.ency (0 (I) disagn:c with any fact alJ cgcd by EPA in the complaint. (2) statc the grounds for 
any Icg<ll defense or (3) disagree with the appropriateness of the proposl!d penalty. 

5. To disagree with the complaint and assert Respondent's right to a hcaring, 
Respondent must Iile a written answcr (and one copy) with the Regionalllearing C lerk (1595 
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Wynkoop Stn.!ct omC); Denver, Colorado 80202) within thirty (30) calcndar days of receiving 
this compla int. The answer must clearly admi t, deny or expla in the factual allegations of the 
complaint, the grounds fo r any defense, the facts Responde nt may dispute, and Respondent's 
spcc ilic req uest for a publi c hearing. Please sec section 22.15 o rthe Ru les of Practi ce for a 
complete descri pti on of what must be in the answer. FAILURE TO FI LE. AN ANSWER AND 
RICQUI<:ST A II ICAR ING WITIIIN T Il IRTY (30) CALICNI)A R IlA YS MAY WA IVE 
R ICS PON Il ICNT'S RI G IIT T O DISAG REE W ITH THE A L L F.GATI ONS O R P ROPOSF. 1l 
P ieNALTY, ANIl RF:SULT IN A DF. FA ULT .JUI)G M ENT ANI) ASSieSSM ENT OF 
PENALTY UP TO TI lE MAX IMUM AUTIlOIlI ZF. 1l BY TI·IE ACT. 

SETTLlcM leNT NICGOTIATIONS 

6. EPA cncoLlragcs discuss ing whether cases can be sett led through informal settlement 
eonfi.:renccs. If Respolldcll t wants to pursue the possibili ty of sen ling this matter. or has any 
othc r questions. contact Jean Bel i lIe. Enfo rcement Anorney. at (303) 312-6556 or at the 
fo llo wi ng address : 

Jean Bclille (Mail Code 8ENF-L) 
lJ .S. EPA Reg ion 8 
1595 Wynkoo p Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

l:t le:lse rw le tha t c:l1 lin ~ Ms. Bel ill e or ,'eq ues ting:1 settl ement confer'ellce docs NOT d elay 
the r unning of the thirty (30) day period fo r filin g an answcl' a nd req ucst ing a hC:'ld n~, 

GENICRA L ALLEGATIONS 

The following general a 1!cgatiol1s apply to all ti mes relevan t to th is action and to each 
violat ion alleged in this complaint: 

7. Respondent is a "person" <15 dc!i ncd in tilt.: J\ct. and is there fore subject to the 
requirements o r the statute and/or regu lat ions. 42 U.S.C. § 300!" (12). 

R. Rt.:spondent owns andlor operates the ! ~lc i l i ty known as Micro Moto rs located <It 96 19 
Ilighway 65. Cory, Colorado ("facil ity"). 

9. On October. 28, 2010 . authorized EPA employees en tered the facili ty. with consent. 
10 inspect it for compliance with the law. This inspect ion showed that the I:lcility operates a 
moto r vehicle maintenance area with one noor drain. The Ooor drain leads to a septic systelll. 

10. Based on the inspec tion described above, Respondent owns <lIld/or operates a CJass V 
Moto r Vehicle W,lste Disposal Wel l. 

II. Respondent's disposa l syswm, as identified in the inspcction above. is c1ass ilied as <\ 
"Class V Jnjection We ll " as de fi ned by 40 C.F. R. §§ 144.6. 144. 81. and 146.5. Respo ndent is 
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subject to applicable requirements or~o C.F.R. §§ 124. 144 and 146. 

12. Lying beneath Respondent's disposal well are underground sources of drinking \\,at.:r 
(USDWs), induding but not limited to, th\! Piceance Basin aqui!(:1". 

13. Rl!spondent is in violation of: 

(a) 40 C.F.R. §§ 144.l2(a) and 144.82(a)( I) by owning, operating or maintaining a Class 
V disposal well which, through injection act ivity, allows the movement of fluid containing any 
contaminant into underground sources of drink ing water. if the presence of lhat contaminant may 
calise a violation of any primary drinking waler regulation or may otherwise adversely affect the 
health or persons; and 

(b) 40 CoF.R. § 144.88(b) for operating a motor vehicle waste dispmul well after thl.: 
January I. 2007 ball of all motor vehicle waste disposal wells. 

Respondent's operation orthe we ll is in violation ofth(.! EPA r(.!gulutions and is therefore 
in violation of the Act, 42 U.S.CO § 300h·2 (c)(J). 

PRO POSED COMPLI ANCE ORDER 

14. Respondent shall: 

(a) within thirlY (30) calendar days of Respondent's receipt of this complaint. submit to 
EPA. in writing. a schedule for permanently closing the disposal well in the motor \!Chide 
maintenance area, and a plan for alternative disposal ortlle wasil.!. Irthe closure includes the lIse 
ora sell'-contuined holding tank, the plan must address the specific type. specifications and si"l.c 
of tank to be installed. EPA will promptly fCview the proposed plan and either approve it or 
provide Respondent with written comments; 

(b) within sixty (60) calendar days or the receipt or this complain t, permanently close the 
disposal well; and 

(c) within thirty (30) calendar days of completing this work. provide EP J\ with 
subsequent documentation of the closure. 

\5. Respondent shall submit all documentation to: 

Bri tta Copt (Mail Code SENF-UFO) 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 
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PROPOSED C IVIL PENALTY 

16. For an administrative proccedi ng. the Act au thorizes the assessment or a civil penalty 
of up to $16,000 per day, for each violat ion Oflhc Act, up to a maximum of$177.500. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 300h-2 (c)(1). The Ac t requires EPA to take into account appropriate factors in assessing a 
civ il penalty, including the seriousness of the violat ions. the econom ic benefit rcslJlling from the 
violations. any hi story of slich violations, any good-fa ith efforts to comply wi th the requirements. 
the economic impact on the violator, and such olher matters as juslicl.! nwy rcquin.:. 

17. As rcquin.:d by the Act. prior 10 the assessment ora civil p(,;nalty. EPA will provide 
public nOlicc orthc proposed penalty. and reasonable OPPo rlllllil), lor thl: public to commellt on 
the malter and prcscnt cvidcncc in the event a hearing is held 42 U.S.C. * 300h-2 (c)(3)(B). 

Ily: 
rew M. Guydosh 

Assistant Regional Administrator 
Oflicc of En!"orccml:llt. ('ornpliallcl: 

And Environmcntal Justice 
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In the Mattcl" of: 

Docket No. : 

Roberti Gallegos, AKA Robcrti N:lngallcgos oWll er/o pcrator of MiCl"o 
Motors 
SDWA-08-2012-0017 

CERTIFI CATE OF SERVICI, 

The undersigned hereby certifies thm the original and onc copy of the PROPOSED 
COMPLIANCE ORDER. PENALTY COMPLAINT. AND NOTICE or OPPORTUNITY FOR 
I WARING with the Consolidated Rules of Pract ice (40 C.p.R. Part 22). <I Public Noticc, and the 
U.S. EPA Small Business Resourccs Fact Sheet were hand-carried to the Rcgional Ilcaring 
Clcrk, EPA Region 8.1595 Wynkoop Street; Denver. Colorado 80202-1129. and that a truc copy 
orthe same was sent via Certified Mail to: 

Roberti Gallegos. AKA Roberti Nangallegos, Owner 
Micro Motors 
9619 Ilighway 65 
Cory. co 81414 

;../lq!l:L 
Dale 
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U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON 
PROPOSED COMPLIANCE ORDER, PENALTY COMPLAINT, 

AND 
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING 

AGAINST 
MICRO MOTORS 

FOR FA ILURE TO COMPLY WITH 
UNDERGROUND INJECTION CONTROL REG ULATIONS 

I'URPOSE OF PUBLI C NOTlO: 

The purpose of this notice is to so licit written comments on a Proposed Compliance Order, Penalty 
Complaint. and alice of Opportunity fo r !learing (complaint) rOockct No. SDWA-08-2012-0017] that 
Region 8 of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) proposes to issue to Micro 
Motors for alleged violations at the facility located in Cory, Colorado. The complaint alleges violations 
of the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the regulations detailing the requirements of the SDWA's 
Underground Injection Cont rol (UIC) program. These regulations govern the injection of fluids that 
may endanger an underground source of drinking water (USDW). The complaint proposes compliance 
requirements and monetary penalties for the alleged violations. 

The EPA desires to receive written comments from any interested party having knowledge ofthc alleged 
violations or who can provide any informat ion useful to ensure that the complaint is appropriate . EPA 
will review and consider all comments received , and will thereafter determine whether to modify or 
withdraw the complaint. 

BACKGROUND 

Part C of the SDWA (40 U.S.C. §300h el seq) requires the EPA to regulate underground injection of 
fluid through wells to assure that underground sources or drinking water (USDWs) arc not endangered. 
Section 1421 orthe SDWA (40 U.S.C. §300h) requires EPA to administer UIC programs in States that 
do not have approved State UIC programs. Regulation o rthe UIC Class V Program has not been 
delegated to the State of Colorado; therefore, EPA administers the program in accordance with title 40 
of the Code of Federal Regulations (40 C.F.R.) parts 124, 144, 146, 147, and 148. 

The Class V motor vehicle waste disposal well which is the subject of this complaint, is located at 9619 
Ilighwuy 65, Cory. Colorado. A Class V injection well , pursuant to 40 c.r.R. §§ 144.6 and 146.5, is a 
shallow injection well that injects fluids into or above a USDW. 

The complaint alleges that Roberti Gallegos, O\VI1er of Micro Motors is in violation of UIC regulations 
and is subject to appropriate penalties for failing to preven t movement orOuids into a USDW that may 
cutlse a violation of a primary drinking water regulution under 40 c.r .R. part 142 or other-vise adversely 



affect the health of persons and operating a banned well. The complaint cites that EPA may assess an 
administrative civil penalty of up to $16,000 per day, for each violation of the Act , up to a maximum of 
$177,500 and proposes certain compl iance measures, including the pennanent closure of the well. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Written comments on the complaint are encouraged and will be accepted at the address listed below for 
a period of thirty (30) calendar days aftcr the publication of this notice. Written comments submitted by 
the public as well as information submitted by Micro Motors, will be available for public review as part 
of the Administrative Record, subject to the provisions of law restrict ing the disclosure of confidential 
information. Micro Motors may request a hearing. Any person submitting written comments will be 
notified of and has a right to participate in such a hearing. The complaint and the Administrative Record 
are available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. at the address listed below. It is recommended 
that those wishing to view the Administrative Record call Jean Bclille, Enforcement Attorney, Legal 
Enforcement Program, EPA Region 8, at (303) 312-6556 before visiting the EPA Region 8 offices. 
Please submit written comments to: 

Tina Artemis (8RC) 
Regional Ilearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Any person interested in receiving their own copy of this or any future public notice of a UIC 
administrative action can call Brina Copt in the UIC program, EPA Region 8, at (303) 312-6229. 

THE DECISION 

EPA will review and consider all public comments received on the public notice and will thereafter 
determine whether to modify or withdraw the complaint. I f the complaint is revised, copies shall be 
provided to all parties and to all members of the public who have commented . 

\ 

~-
Darcy O'Connor, Acting Director 
UICIFIFRAlOPA Technical Enforcement Program 
U.S. EPA, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202 



§21. 13 

approve or disapprove the State issued 
statement, 1n accordance witb the re­
quirements of §21.5. 

(2) The Regional Administrator wi J 1 
periodically review State program per­
formance. In the event of State pro­
gram deficiencies the Regional Admin­
istrator will notify tbe State of sucb 
deficiencies. 

(3) During that period that any 
State's program 1s classified as defi­
cient, statements issued by a State 
shall also be sent to the Regional Ad­
ministrator for review . The Regional 
Administrator shall notify the Stat.e , 
Lho applicant, and the SEA of any de­
termination subsequently made, in ac­
cordance wi th § 21.5, on any such stato­
ment. 

(i) If within 60 days after notice of 
such deficiencies bas been provided. 
the State has not taken corrective ef­
forts, and if the defiCiencies signifi­
cant.ly affect the conduct of the pro­
gram, the Regional Administrator, 
after sufficient notice has been pro­
vided to the Regional Director of SBA, 
f;hall withdl'aw the approval of the 
State program. 

(ii) Any State whose pl'Ogram is with­
drawn and whose deficiencies have been 
corrected may later reapply as pro­
vided in §21.12(a). 

(g) Funds appropriated under section 
106 of the Act may be utilized by a 
State agency author ized to receive 
such fun ds in conducting t his program. 

§ 21.13 Effcct of cer tificat ion upon au­
th or ity to e nforc e a pplicable sL.IIlc1 -
a n ls . 

The certification by EPA or a State 
for SBA Loan purposes tn no way con­
stitutes a determination by EPA or the 
State that the facilities certified (a) 
will be constructed within the time 
specified by an applicable standar'd or 
(b) will be constructed a nd installed in 
accordan ce with the plans and speci­
fications submitted in the application , 
will be operated and maintained prop­
erly, or will be a.pplied to process 
wastes which arc the same as described 
in the application. The certification in 
no way constttu~s a waiver by EPA at' 
a State of its authority to take appro­
priate enforcement action against the 
owner or operator of such facilities for 
violations of an applicable standard: 

' . 1 ~ I"') _ . (\ r.~ ;.. t l.- L-A....\ 
J j 

40 C FR Ch. I (7-1-08 Edii ion) 

PART 22-CONSOLIDATED RULES 
O F PRACTICE GOVERNING TH E 
A DMINISTRATIV E ASSESSMENT OF 
C IVI L PENALTIES A ND TH E REV ­
OCATION/ TE RMINATION OR SUS­
PENSION OF PERM ITS 

Subpart A-Genercl 

Sec. 
22.1 Scope of this pa.rt. 
22.2 Use of number and !;"t::nder. 
2'.l.3 Definitions. 
22.1 Powers and dut.ies of the Environ­

mental Appeals Board, Regional Judicia] 
Off1cer a lld Proaiding Officer; disqua.l1-
fication, wlthdr:~wal. a.nd nmssi!;"nment. 

22.5 Filin!;", service, and form of ~dl flied 
document.s: business confidentiallt.y 
claims. 

22.6 Filing and service or rulings, orders and 
deCisions. 

22.7 Computat.ion and ext.ension of t.ime. 
22.8 Ex parte discussion of proceeding'. 
22.9 Examinat.ion of documen ts filed. 

Subpart B-Parties and Appearances 

22.10 Iqlpeal·;:mcos. 
22.11 !nt..ervent.!on 'Lnd non ~pa.rt.y briefs. 
22.12 Consolidat.ion and severance. 

Subpart C-Preheoring Procedures 

22.13 Commencement of a proceeding. 
22.11 Complaint. 
22.15 Answer to the complaint. 
22.16 Motion::;. 
22.17 Default. 
22.18 Quick resolution: settlemont; a.lt.er­

native dispute resolut ion. 
22.1 9 Prehcarillg' inforln:l.tion exchange; prt!­

hearing conference; ot.her discovery. 
22.20 Accelerated decision; decision to dis­

miss. 

Subpart D- Heoring Procedures 

22.21 Assignment. of l'!'csldlng" Officer; 
scheduling the hearinl~. 

22.22 Evidenco. 
22,23 Objections a.nd offol's of proof. 
22.21 Burden o f pI·esentn.t.ion: burden of per­

suasion; propondorancfl of the evidence 
standard. 

2'4.25 Filing the traIlSCl'ipt., 
22.26 Proposed findings, conclUSions, and 

order. 

Subp art E-ln ifial Decision and Motion -to 
Reopen 0 Hearing 

22.27 In it.ial decision. 
22,28 Motion tu reopOIl fl. hen .. rilll(. 
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oEA 
United States 
Environmental Protection 
Agency 

Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance (2201A) 
EPA 300·F..o7"{)03 October 2007 

_~
~,;,: • .;e -.. Office of Enforcemenl and Compliance Assurancelf).'- '~'- " ,':' ','I 
, , ' "\-1:' " . • . ,,', "" INFORM A"rION SHEE"r, ,t~.,i ',', ' " :, ...... '.;.-;.,.... . 1-\.1 . ",,:~,;, .. ' '{,' "I. Jr..\- .. ! ' "~ .• p.~,,ti- • .• (j~"'~~~/!" '~s1<f~"~-L"I.~~. y~' • 

U, S, EPA Small Business Resources 

I f you own a sma!1 business, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) offers 
a variety of compliance assistance resources such as workshops, training sessions, hotlines. 

websites, and guides to assist you in complying with federal and state environmental laws, These 
resources can help you understand your environmental obligations, improve compliance, and find cost­
effective ways to comply through the use of pollution prevention and other innovative technologies, 

Compliance A ssistance Centers 
('N'WW.assislancecenlers.net) 

In partnership with industry, universities, and other federal 
and state agencies, EPA has established Compliance 
Assistance Centers that provide infonnation targeted to 
industries with many small businesses. 

Agriculture 
(www,epa.gov/agriculture or 1·888-.663-2155) 

Automotive Recycling Industry 
(www.ecarcenter.arg) 

Automotive Service and Repair 
(www.ccar-g reenlink.org ar 1·888-GRN·lINK) 

Chemical Industry 
(VNNI.chemaliiance.arg ) 

Construction Industry 
(www.cicacenter.org or 1.734·995-4911) 

Education 
(www.campuserc.org) 

Healthcaro Industry 
(.....-ww.hercenter.org or 1-734-995-4911) 

Metal Finishing 
(www.nmfrc.org or 1·734·995-4911) 

Paints and Coatings 
(www.painlcenter.org or 1.734-995-4911) 

Printed Wiring Board Manufacturing 
(www.pwbrc.org or 1-734-995-4911) 

Printing 
(www.pneac.org or 1.a88-USPNEAC) 

Transportation Industry 
(VNoW.transource.arg) 

Tribal Governments and Indian Country 
(www.epa.govltriballcompliance or 202-564-2516) 

US Border Environmental Issues 
(www.bordercenter.org or 1·734-995-4911) 

The Centers also provide State Resource Locators 
(w.vw.envcap.org/statetoolslindex.cfm) for a wide range of 
topics to help you find important environmental compliance 
information spedfic to your state. 

EPA Webs ites 
EPA has several Internet sites thai provide useful compli­
ance assistance information and materials for small 
businesses. If you don't have access to the Internet at 
your business, many public libraries provide access to the 
Internet at minimal or no cost 

EPA's Home Page 
WNW.epa.g<:N 

Small Business Gateway 
www.epa.gov/smallbusiness 

Compliance Assistance Home Page 
www.epa.gov/complianceJassistance 

Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance 
www.epa.gov/comp/iance 

Voluntary Partnership Programs 
www.epa.gov/partners 



Hotlines, Helplines & Clearinghouses 
(www . epa. goy/epa home/hotl i ne. hIm) 
EPA sponsors many free hotlines and clearinghouses that 
provide convenient assistance regarding environmental 
requirements. A few examples are listed below: 

Clean Air Technology Center 
(WW'N.epa·90vfttn/catc or 1-919-541-0800) 

Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act 
(www.epa.gov/superfundfresQUfCeslinfocenterfepcra.htm or 
1-800-424-9346) 

EPA's Small Business Ombudsman Hotlineprovides 
regulatory and technical assistance information. 
(www.epa.gov/sbo or 1-800-368-5888) 

The National Environmental Compliance Assistance 
Clearinghouse provides quick access to compliance assis­
tance tools, contacts, and planned activi ties from the U.S. 
EPA. states, and other compliance assistance providers 
(www.epa.gov/clearinghouse) 

National Response Center to report oil and hazardous 
substance spills. 
(www.nrc.uscg.mil or 1·800-424·8802) 

Pollution Prevention Information Clearinghouse 
(www.opa.gov/opptintr/ppic or 1·202·566·0799) 

Safe Drinking Water Hotline 
(www.epa.90vfsafewaterlhotlinelindex.htmlor 1~800-426-4791) 

Stratospheric Ozone Refrigerants Information 
(www.epa.gov/ozone or 1~800~296-1996) 

Toxies Assistance Information Service also includes asbestos 
inquiries. 
(1 ~202~554~ 1404) 

Wetlands Helpline 
(www.epa.govlowow/wetlandslwetline.html or 1-800~832~7828) 

State Agencies 
Many state agencies have established compliance assis­
tance programs that provide on-site and other types of 
assistance. Contact your local state environmental agency 
for more information or the following two resources: 

EPA's Small Business Ombudsman 
(www.epa.gov/sbo or 1-800-368-5888) 

Small Business Environmental Homepage 
(www.smallbiz-enviroweb.org or 1-724-452-4722) 

Compliance Incentives 
EPA provides incentives for environmental compliance. By 
participating in compliance assistance programs or 

voluntarily disclosing and promptly correcting violations 
before an enforcement action has been initiated, 

businesses may be eligible for penalty waivers or reductions. 

EPA has two policies that potentially apply to small 

businesses: 

The Small Business Compliance Policy 
(www.epa.gov!compliancelincentives/smaJlbusiness) 

Audit Policy 
(www.epa.govJcompJiance/inccntiveslauditing) 

Commenting on Federal Enforcement 
Actions and Compliance Activities 
The Small Business Regu latory Enforcement Fairness Act 
(SBREFA) established an SBA Ombudsman and 10 Regional 
Fairness Boards to receive comments from small businesses 
about federal agency enforcement actions. If you believe that 
you fall within the Small Business Administration's definition 
of a small business (based on your North American Industry 
Classification System (NAICS) designation, number of 
employees, or annual receipts, defined at 13 C.F.R. 121.201; 
in most cases, this means a business with 500 or fewer 
employees), and wish to comment on federal enforcement 
and compliance activities, call the SBREFA Ombudsman's 
toll-free number at 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247). 

Every small business that is the subject of an enforcement 
or compliance action is entitled to comment on the 
Agency's actions without fear of retaliation. EPA 
employees are prohibited from using enforcement or any 
other means of retaliation against any member of the 
regulated community in response to comments made under 
SBREFA. 

Your Duty to Comply 
If you receive compliance assistance or submit comments 
to the SBREFA Ombudsman or Regional Fairness Boards, 
you stili have the duty to comply with the law, including 
providing timely responses to EPA information requests, 
administrative or civil complaints, other enforcement 
actions or communications. The assistance information 
and comment processes do not give you any new rights or 
defenses in any enforcement action. These processes 
also do not affect EPA's obligation to protect public health 
orthe environment under any of the environmental statutes 
it enforces, including the right to take emergency remedial 
or emergency response actions when appropriate. Those 
decisions will be based on the facts in each situation. The 
SBREFA Ombudsman and Fairness Boards do not 
participate in resolving EPA's enforcement actions. Also, 
remember that to preserve your rights, you need to comply 
with all rules governing the enforcement process. 

EPA is disseminating this information to you 
without making a determination that your business 
or organization is a small business as defined by 
Section 222 of the Small Business Regulatory 
Enforcement Fairness Act or related provisions. 


